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PRICE RISE

Once more it is necessary to announce a
price rise; unfortuneately it has now become an
annual event.

A yearly subscription in Australia will now
cost $7.50while the overseas rate will be $9.00.
The face value will remain at §1.25. It will be
seen that the subscription price now matches
the face value instead of being at a discount.
However this still includes postage and other
distribution costs.

TMSV Late News

Since the TMSV notes were received two
further cars have been received at Bylands.

W2 331 and VR 52(701 —but this number has
never been carried) arrived from Preston Work-
shops on Tuesday 16 December 1980. The VP
car has been mounted on W2 bogies.

The other remaining VR car, 700 formerly
52, has been acquired by the ARHS and has
gone to North Williamstown.
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BACK COVER: Former Sydney AEC Regent 2507
is seen outside Mildura Post Office in December
1978 in the guise of ‘Big Ben' After withdrawal
Jrom service in Sydney it served in Mount Gamb.
ier for two years and Victor Harbour for 18
months (both in South Australia) before going to
Mildura (Victoria) for tourist duties.

- Bruce Mclean

FRONT COVER: The Minister for Works, Mr. Charles Lee, is seen standing on the platform of steam
motor 41A just prior to cutting the ribbon for the ceremonial opening of the North Manly to Brookvale
tramway extension on Saturday 16 April 1910. This function was performed at the Manly end of the
new bridge across the Curl Curl (Manly) Lagoon. - V.Solomons Collection
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B. 1907-1910 THE RETURN OF THE STEAM TRAM

By K. McCarthy

The return of steam traction to the Manly
tramways on 1 October 1907, after a four year
period of horse operation, (See TW October 1979)
was not only due to an increase in patronage. It was
also the result of more economical working of steam
trams brought about by the dispensation of firemen
after 1906. To enable one man operation, the steam
motors were fitted with dual controls so that the
driver could be stationed to the right of the boiler
towards the front of the motor in either direction of
operation. Some motors were fitted with dual
operating positions in the 1890’s (N10 at New-
castle being one such unit) but, prior to the general
conversion in 1906, the single control position was
located half way along the side of the boiler.

To improve the driver’s forward visibility the
headlamps were lifted from the front bulkhead to

above the roof canopy while later, some motors had
sections cut away from the front aprons to improve
the view ahead along the tracks. Prior to his
dispensation, part of the fireman’s role was that of
lookout man which required him to take up position
on the front platform of the engine to warn the driver
of approaching traffic and to trip the plough type
lifeshield if an unwary pedestrian should fall in front
of the vehicle. A gate flap, similar to that fitted to
electric tramcars, was fitted to the front of the one
man motors to automatically drop the plough
lifeshield or *“cow catcher’ if an obstruction was on
the tracks.

Another consideration, which prompted the
return of steam traction to Manly and initiated
planning towards eventual electric operation, was
the threat of motor bus competition. The *“Daily

The Minister for Works, Charles Lee, cuts the ribbon from the platform of steam
motor 41A to mark the official opening of the Brookvale tramway on Saturday
afternoon 16 April 1910. This ceremony was carried out on the southern side of
the Curl Curl Lagoon bridge at North Manly. - V.Solomons Collection
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Horsecar 293 stands at the North Manly terminus, alongside the depot.
The driver is James lvey who operated the Manly line under contract
between 1 June 1906 and 30 September 1906. See TW October 1979
for details. - Courtesy Miss B.lvey

Telegraph” for 20 May 1905 reported that a Mr. P.
Kerr had recently requested permission from
Manly Council to introduce a motor bus service
from Manly to Newport using two single deck
motor vehicles with a seating capacity of 16 each
and one double decker seating 34.

STEAM ROLLING STOCK AT MANLY

A mystery exists as to the steam motors attached
to Manly Depot during the 1907-1909 period.
Research so far has failed to reveal if the two
original Manly steam motors, numbers 41 and 60
were converted to the one man dual control form
while at North Manly Depot or if they were shipped
back to Randwick Workshops on the main Sydney
system for this work.

On 23 November 1906, during the period of
horse operation, a memo from Traffic Superinten-
dent Kneeshaw to Electrical Engineer O. Brain
revealed that there were 2 steam motors and 3
steam trailers stored at Manly Depot being “‘the
vehicles transferred there when the line opened™.

During the period 1907 to 1909, when the
undertaking was again steam operated over the
original 1903 route, the following details emerge
concerning the three engines associated with the
tramway at that time, numbers 27, 41 and 60.
No. 27 - In Sydney during Fleet Week, August

1908.
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At Manly by 1909.
Transferred back to Sydney from Manly
on May 1911.

No. 41 - Transferred to Manly from Sydney on 31st
January 1903.
At Manly 23 November 1906.
Transferred back to Sydney from Manly
on 2 May 1911.

No. 60 - Transferred to Manly from Sydney on 31
January 1903.
At Manly 23 November 1906
At Randwick workshops to receive a new
boiler by 1910.

It seems that motor No. 60 departed from Manly
circa 1908-9 and was replaced by one man motor
27A. Motor 41 remained at Manly for the entire
steam and horse operation period from 1903 to
1911 and was converted to dual control, one man
style and renumbered 41A in circa 1907.

The original 70 seat bogie trailers of the C2 (later
B) class, numbers 10B, 15B and 73B were stored at
Manly Depot throughout the horse operating
period.

The first part of this brief account of the Manly
tramways outlined the difficulties in transferring
steam rolling stock from Sydney to Manly in 1903,
so it is with surprise that the “‘Railway Weekly
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Notice’” mentions that motor 60 operated a rolling
stock transfer trip between Sydney and Ashfield on
24 January 1904. As this motor was situated at
Manly at that stage this ““Weekly Notice™ entry
must therefore be in error.

PROPOSED ELECTRIFICATION OF THE
MANLY TRAMWAYS

On 16 February 1909 an initial investigation was
undertaken concerning the electrification of the
short Manly line between the pier and North Manly
Depot. This report had been requested by the
Railway Commissioner on 15 January 1909.

The report considered that a single electric tram
would be sufficient for the ordinary service with two
electric cars in traffic to work the peak hour
frequency. A fleet of four electric trams would be
required at Manly to make up two coupled sets
during the summer holiday traffic periods.

To permit a 15 minute service at peak periods,
the terminal depot loop would have to be extended 3
chains towards Manly or a new loop could be
constructed 9 chains from the outer terminus near
the Smith/Hutton Streets intersection to enable
cars to pass on the single track line.
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Further progress of this scheme did not even-
tuate, for on 13 February 1909 the estimates for
electrification had to be reviewed to take into
account the political decision to extend the Manly
tramway to The Spit with a separate northwards
extension beyond North Manly to Brookvale.

THE BROOKVALE EXTENSION

During 1907, Mr. Lee, the Minister for Works,
promised the Warringah Shire Council that the
state government would build the tramway exten-
sion from Curl Curl Lagoon (North Manly) to
Brookvale, a distance of 2 miles and 10 chains at a
cost of £10,000 as the next step on the route to
Pittwater.

A further report dated 13 February 1909 stated
that six single truck electric cars of 50 seat capacity
would be required to work the planned Manly to
The Spit route with three additional similar trams
for the Manly to Brookvale tramway. It would not
be practical, however, to provide electric trams on
the Brookvale extension until The Spit line was
available for service.

As a result of this report District Superintendent
Herrmann informed Traffic Superintendent J.

Steam motor 41A hauling C2 type car 98B and A3/6 type car 149B in preparation
for the opening ceremony of the Brookvale tramway on Saturday afternoon 16 April
1910. Although the location is hard to identify, the tram is probably standing in
Pittwater Road just east of the North Manly depot prior to steaming to the Curl
Curl Lagoon bridge for the Opening Ceremony. - V.Solomons Collection
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The Official Tram hauled by steam motor 41A with cars 98B, 149B and 73B
steams up Pittwater Road Brookvale on Saturday afternoon 16 April 1910. The
tram is passing Chard Road intersection as it moves northwards into the
terminal loop. It gained an additional car after the ribbon cutting at Curl Curl

Lagoon. -V .Solomons Collection

Kneeshaw that one additional steam motor and
three trailers would be required for the Brookvale
extension prior to electrification.

A contract for the construction of the 2 miles and
12 chains of permanent way between North Manly
and Brookvale was let on August 31st 1909 to
Barrie and Cowdery of North Sydney at an amount
of £5,644-7s-6d. The rail joints were specified as
being thermit welded to make the undertaking
suitable for electric operation in the near future.
The planned completion date was set down as 1
April 1910.

The location of passing loops on the tramway
gave cause for concern as the mixed variety of
steamers used on the Circular Quay to Manly ferry
service produced a wide range of speeds and to
describe the operation as a “half hourly ferry
service”” was not very accurate. To cater for half
hourly and quarter hourly frequencies the existing
depot loop at North Manly depot was retained at a
distance of 90 chains from Manly Pier while an
additional passing loop was positioned on the
extension at 149 chains to be known as Harbord
Loop beyond Harbord Road. The anticipated run-
ning times were 8 minutes from Manly to North
Manly with an additional 15 minutes required to
reach the Brookvale terminus at the intesection of
Pittwater, Old Pittwater, Winbourne Roads and
Alfred Street.
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The terminal loop at Brookvale was designed to
hold a steam motor and three trailers requiring 153
feet in the clear while the passing loops were each
330 feet (5 chains) in length.

During the planning stages, Inspector Munro
suggested in a letter dated 24 June 1909 to John
Kneeshaw, that as the new terminus at Brookvale
would be situated on a 1 in 32 grade falling away
from the dead end, a safety car siding should be laid
from the loop towards Manly forming a short length
of parallel track to the main line on the southern side
of the loop. Such an arrangement had been provid-
ed at the West Wallsend terminus at Newcastle but
this proposal was not adopted at Brookvale.

No additional depot accommodation was requir-
ed at Manly for the new rolling stock as the original
sheds could house six trailers and four motors.
Some concern however, was expressed concerning
the fueling arrangements at North Manly once the
extension was completed. Unfortunately the track
maps mentioned in memos and letters of the period
from January to August 1909 have not so far been
located.

From written descriptions it now appears that the
original 1903 terminal layout at North Manly
consisted of a run around loop located in Pittwater
Road, a two road trailer shed, a single track motor
shed and a single fuel road. This latter track served
the coke stage situated on the depot yard boundary
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with Pittwater Road and motors requiring fuel ran
into the depot yard while the car stood at the
terminus in Pittwater Road where passengers could
join the trailer at leisure.

If the track arrangements at North Manly Depot
were not altered with the route extension to Brook-
vale, it would be most inconvenient to uncouple the
motor from the trailers at the depot to take on fuel,
while it would be undesirable to carry the fuel to the
motor across the street as it waited on the loop. A
suggestion to extend the coke stage onto the public
roadway was rejected in favour of a plan to expand
the depot yard fuel siding into a passing loop so that
trams requiring fuel and water could pass through
the yard without reversing. The existing North
Manly loop in Pittwater Road was to be retained
until the decision was made as to the location of
passing loops for the electric service. To make the
fuel siding suitable for through traffic the lead line
from the street into the depot yard had to be eased
as well.

To save time in refueling, John Kneeshaw rec-
ommended to the Commissioner at this stage that
the water column situated in the depot yard be
repositioned at the coke stage so that both fuel and
water could be taken at the same time.

The steepest grade on the Brookvale extension
amounted to 1 in 31 for a distance of 2 chains while
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the sharpest curve was 90 feet radius. Girder rails
of 100 Ib. weight were constructed on the straight
sections while 80 Ib. tee rails and 109 Ib. grooved
plant were used on curves. The rails were laid on
iron bark sleepers on a bed of white metal ballast
obtained from the French’s Forest quarry at a cost
of £2,344-6s-0d.

On 12 January 1910 a report from Inspector
Munro to John Kneeshaw revealed the track had
been laid to within a half mile of the new terminus
and the excavations for the entire length of the route
were completed. Construction of the Harbord Loop
was underway but work still had to be undertaken
on the Curl Curl Bridge at North Manly. At this
time the fuel stage and depot yard alterations had
not commenced.

Two alternatives were considered for the fare
structure to Brookvale. One proposal envisaged the
total 3 miles 33 chain journey being divided into
two fare sections at 1d per section with the end of
the first section being located at Queenscliffe Road.
The alternative scheme, which was the one adopt-
ed, called for three sections:-

Manly to North Manly Depot - 1st section - 1
mile 20 chains (100 chains)

Manly Depot to Spit Road - 2nd section - 88
chains.

Spit Road to Brookvale - 3rd section - 85 chains.

The ‘white metal’ ballast is evident in this photo of the Brookvale tramway.
The paddock beside the tramway is en fete for the opening. The grades and
hill backdrop suggests that this photo was taken looking south at the
Pittwater Road/Cross Street intersection. - V.Solomons Collection
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This structure made the through adult fare of 3d.
and the child’s fare 1d. These short section struc-
tures remained in use on all routes of the Manly
tramway network until the closure in 1939, at a
period when the section lengths on the main Sydney
system were an average of 2 miles.

The single track staff sections were:-

Staff section 1 - Manly Esplanade to North
Manly Loop.

Staff section 2 - North Manly Loop to Harbord
Loop.

Staff section 3 - Harbord Loop to Brookvale
Terminus.

ROLLING STOCK TRANSFERS

Traffic Superintendent Kneeshaw reported to
the Commissioner that 2 steam motors and 3
trailers would eventually be required to work the
Brookvale extension at a book value of £2,460, but
only 1 motor and 3 cars would be needed at the
start. He recommended that this rolling stock be
transferred from Randwick Tramway workshops,
on the main Sydney system, as soon as possible to
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relieve a shed space problem for electric trams.
This recommendation was approved by Commis-
sioner Johnson on 7 January 1910.

This additional rolling stock transfer was made
on Sunday 30 January 1910 when motor 78 A and
70 seat ““C2” cars 98B and 174B with older 50 seat
tramcar 149B (a former double decker in the
Sydney steam service) left Botany Road railway
connection sidings at Railway Square at 9-10am
for the East Road at Darling Harbour Wharf. On
arrival these trams were stabled ready for transfer
to Manly on harbour lighters on the following day.

During the latter part of January 1910 the Manly
steam motors and trailers received destination
boxes and rolls of the narrow *“car” pattern. Manly
had remained the second last N.S.W. Government
Tramways route to use the old destination boards.
The last location for their use was on the Fassifern
to Toronto railway when it was worked by steam
tramway rolling stock between 29 August 1910 and
28 May 1911 during the period when that former
private railway was being rebuilt to heavier stand-
ards by the N.S.W. Government Railways.

The crowd which gathered at the southern end of Curl Curl Lagoon bridge
on 16 April 1910 to witnees the Official Opening of the Brookvale
tramway. One of the horse trams can be seen standing off the tracks
behind the marquee. The reason for ils presence is unexplained.
-V.Solomons Collection






